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• DR 
DIEZ, DUPUY & RUIZ, LLC 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the Town Council 
Town of Sorrento, Louisiana 

Report on the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, and each major fund of the Town of Sorrento, Louisiana (the Town), as of and for the year ended, 
June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statement, which collectively comprise the Town of 
Sorrento, Louisiana's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, and the major fund of the Town, as 
of June 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for 
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described 
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required 
to be independent of the Town and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant 
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Town's ability to continue as a going concern 
for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may 
raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial staternents as a whole are free 
fi-om material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Governrnent 
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstaternents 
are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would 
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing 
Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticisrn throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of rnaterial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or, error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Town's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by manageinent, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that 
raise substantial doubt about the Town's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period 
of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 
that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's 
Discussion and Analysis, the budgetary comparison schedules, the Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net 
Pension Liability, and the Schedule of Plan contributions on pages 5 through 13 and 51 through 55, respectively, 
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management 
and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements 
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to 
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the inforrnation for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide assurance on the information because the liinited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
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Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Town of Sorrento, Louisiana's basic financial statements. The Schedule of Compensation, 
Benefits, and Other Payments to Agency Head and Justice System Funding Schedule — Receiving Entity are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and were derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The infortnation has been subjected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and 
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 22, 2024 
on our consideration of the Town of Sorrento, Louisiana's internal control over fmancial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Town of Sorrento, Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town 
of Sorrento, Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

1)6(1 ie6e-ti 
November 22, 2024 
Gonzales, Louisiana 
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TOWN OF SORRENTO, LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Our analysis of The Town of Sorrento's (Town) financial performance provides an 
overview of the Town's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. The 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the current 
year's activities, resulting changes, and currently known facts. This MD&A should be 
read in conjunction with the financial statements which begin on Exhibit A. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Government-wide financial statements 

• Assets and deferred outflows of the Town's primary government exceeded its 
liabilities and defeiTed inflows at the close of the year by approximately $4.4 inillion 
(net position). Of this amount, approximately $1.6 million (unrestricted net position) 
may be used without restrictions to meet the Town's ongoing obligations to citizens 
and creditors. 

• The Town experienced an increase in government-wide net position of approximately 
$240,000 as governrnent-wide revenues exceeded expenses. The increase in total net 
position is primarily due to increase in operating grants and contributions of 
$213,000, collectively, from the prior year, while overall expenses increased by 
$84,000, primarily due to increases in highway and street expenses related to drainage 
maintenance and other contractual costs. 

Governmental Fund financial statements 

• As of the end of the year, the governrnent's General Fund reported a fund balance of 
approximately $1.8 million, an increase of approximately $389,000 in comparison to 
the prior year primarily due to a decrease in one time capital outlay expenditures of 
$158,000. Additionally, general governrnental expenditures increased by $45,000 due 
to increases in personnel cost, professional fees and planning and zoning related 
expenditures as well as increases in the highways and streets function of $22,000 due 
to increases in infrastructure and equipment related repairs. 

Approxirnately 14% of the fund balance is restricted for purposes related to 
recreation, public safety, and senior citizen programs. 

Significant aspects of the Town's financial well-being, as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2024, are detailed throughout this analysis. 

(Continued) 
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USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

The Town's financial statements focus on the government as a whole and on major 
individual funds. Both government-wide and fund perspectives allow the reader to 
address relevant questions, broaden a basis for comparison from year to year and should 
enhance the Town's accountability. 

This annual report consists of a series of financial staternents. The Staternent of Net 
Position and the Statement of Activities (on pages 15 and 16, respectively) provide 
inforrnation about the activities of the Town as a whole and present a longer-term view of 
the Town's finances. 

Fund financial statements start on page 17. For governmental activities, these statements 
depict how services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future 
spending. Fund financial staternents also report the Town's operations in rnore detail 
than the government-wide statements by providing information about the Town's rnost 
significant funds. 

The Town's auditor has provided assurance in their independent auditors' report, located 
immediately preceding this MD&A, that the financial statements are fairly stated. 
Vaiying degrees of assurance are being provided by the auditor regarding the Required 
Supplernental Inforrnation. A user of this report should read the independent auditors' 
report carefully to ascertain the level of assurance being provided for each part of this 
report. 

Reporting on the Town as a Whole 

The analysis of the Town as a whole begins on page 15. The Staternent of Net Position 
and the Statement of Activities report inforrnation about the Town as a whole and its 
activities in a way to deterrnine if the Town is in better condition, compared to the prior 
year. These staternents include all assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred 
inflows using the accrual basis of accounting, which is sirnilar to accounting rnethods 
used by rnost private-sector cornpanies. All of the current year's revenues and expenses 
are reported regardless of when cash is received or paid. Thus, revenues and expenses are 
reported in these staternents for some iterns that will only result in cash flows in future 
fiscal periods. 

These two statements report the Town's net position and related changes. The Town's 
financial health, or financial position, can be rneasured by its net position—the difference 
between assets plus deferred outflows and liabilities plus deferred inflows. Over tirne, 
increases or decreases in the Town's net position are one indicator of whether its 
financial health is irnproving or deteriorating. Other non-financial factors should be 
considered such as changes in the Town's property and sales tax base and the condition 
of the Town's buildings, to assess the overall health of the Town. 

In the Staternent of Net Position and the Staternent of Activities, the Town's operations 
are divided into two kinds of activities: 
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Governmental activities — Most of the Town's basic services are reported here, 
including public safety, highway and streets, culture and recreation, and general 
adrninistration. Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes and occupational license fees 
finance most of these activities. 

Business-type activities — The Town charges a fee to customers to fund the cost of 
certain services it provides. The Town rnaintains garbage pickup, sewer operations and 
leases a water distribution system. The business-type activities have historically 
generated an operating deficit, primarily due to sewer system repairs and depreciation 
expense recognized on the Town's water and sewer systems. 

At June 30, 2024, the Town's net position was approximately $4.4 million, of which 
approxirnately $1.6 million was unrestricted. Restricted net position of $255,000 is 
reported separately to show legal constraints from legislation that limits the Town's 
ability to use the net position for day-to-day operations. 

The analysis of the prirnary government focuses on the net positions and change in net 
position of the Town's governmental and business-type activities and is as follows: 

TONN11 of Sorrento, Louisiana 
Statement of Net Position 
June 30. 2024 and 2023 

(in thousands) 

 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-type 
Activities 

Total Prirnary 
Government 

 

2014 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 

Current and other assets $ 1,947 $ 1,442 $ 115 $ 317 $ 2,062 $ 1,759 
Internal balances 58 65 (58) (65) - - 
Capital assets 1,428 1,458 1,185 1,287 2,613 2,745 
Deferred outflows 1 2 

  

1 2 

Total assets and deferred outflows 3,434 2,967 1,242 1,539 4,676 4,506 

Current and other liabilities 202 94 104 281 306 375 
Long-term liabilities 9 11 - 

 

9 11 
Deferred inflows 

 

- 

    

Total liabilities and 
deferred inflows 211 105 104 281 315 386 

Net position: 

      

Net investment in capital assets 1,428 1,458 1,076 1,182 2,504 2,640 
Restricted 255 203 - - 255 203 
Uurestricted (deficit) 1,540 1,201 62 76 1,602 1,277 

Total net position $ 3.223 $ 2,862 $ 1,138 $ 1.258 $ 4,361 $ 4.120 

Net position of the Town's governrnental activities increased by approxirnately $360,000 
during 2024. Unrestricted net position represents the part of net position that can be used 
to finance day-to-day operations without constraints established by legislation or other 
legal requirements. The $1.5 million in unrestricted net position of governmental 
activities represents the accumulated results of operations. The changes in net position 
are discussed later in this analysis. 
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The net position of the Town's business activities decreased by approximately $120,000 
during 2024. The Town maintains garbage pickup, sewer operations and leases a water 
distribution system. The Town's business activities have an unrestricted net position of 
$62,000 as of June 30, 2024, with net position invested in net capital asset of $1,076,000. 

The results of this year's operations for the prirnary government as a whole, as reported 
in the Staternent of Activities, are as follows: 

Town of Sorrento 
Changes in Net Position 

For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2013 
(in thousands) 

 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-type 
Activities Total 

 

2024 2013 2024 2023 2024 2023 

Revenues: 

Prograrn revenues: 

      

Charges for services $ 163 164 $ 246 240 $ 409 $ 404 
Operating grants 

and contributions 248 35 - 

 

248 35 
Capital grants 

and contributions 51 150 - 80 51 230 
General revenues: 

      

Sales taxes 869 1,045 - 

 

869 1,045 
Franchise taxes 112 120 - 

 

112 120 
Ad valorern taxes 90 84 

  

90 84 
Other and transfers 85 39 (11) (5) 74 34 

Total revenues 1,618 1,637 235 315 1,853 1,952 

Functions/Program expenses: 

      

General government 425 540 - 

 

425 540 
Public safety 425 437 - 

 

425 437 
Highways and streets 265 101 - 

 

265 101 
Culture and recreation 143 150 - 

 

143 150 
Utility operations 

  

355 301 355 301 

Total expenses 1,258 1,228 355 301 1,613 1,529 

Change in net pos tion 360 409 (12(1) 14 240 423 

Beginning net position 2,863 2,454 1,258 1,244 4,121 3,698 

Ending net position $ 3,223 $ 2,863 $ 1,138 $ 1,258 $ 4,361 $ 4,121 

(Continued) 
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Fund Financial Staternents 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources 
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Traditional users of 
governrnental financial statements will find the fund financial staternents presentation 
rnore farniliar. The focus is on rnajor funds, rather than generic fund types. 

Reporting the Town's Most Significant Funds 

The analysis of the Town's rnajor funds begins on page 17 with the fund financial 
staternents that provide detailed inforrnation about the rnost significant funds—not the 
Town as a whole. Sorne funds are required to be established by State law or by bond 
covenants. However, the Town Council establishes other funds to control and manage 
rnoney for particular purposes or rneeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, 
grants, and other rnoney. The Town's two kinds of funds—governmental and 
proprietaiy—use different accounting approaches. 

Governmental funds Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the sarne 
functions reported as governrnental activities in the government-wide financial 
statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental 
fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable 
resources, as well as balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal 
year. Most of the Town's basic services are reported in governmental funds. These fiinds 
are reported using an accounting rnethod called modified accrual accounting, which 
rneasures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The 
governrnental fund staternents provide a detailed short-terrn view of the Town's general 
governrnent operations and the basic services it provides. Governrnental fund information 
helps deterrnine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in 
the near future to finance the Town's prograrns. The relationship (or differences) between 
governmental activities (reported in the Staternent of Net Position and the Staternent of 
Activities) and governrnental funds is described in a reconciliation to the financial 
statements. The governmental major funds (Exhibits A-2 and A-4) presentation is 
presented using rnodified accnial basis and focuses on the major funds of the Town. The 
Town has one governrnental fiind, which is the General Fund. 

Proprietary funds—When the Town charges custorners for the services it provides—
whether to outside custorners or to other units of the Town—these services are generally 
reported in proprietary funds. Proprietaiy funds are reported in the sarne way that all 
activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. In 
fact, the Town's enterprise funds are the sarne as the business-type activities reported in 
the government-wide staternents but provide rnore detail and additional inforrnation, such 
as cash flows, for proprietaiy funds. The Town has one proprietary fund, which is the 
Utility Fund. 

(Continued) 
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Notes to the financial statements—The notes provide information that is essential to a 
full understanding of the government-wide and fund financial staternents. The notes to 
the financial statements are a required part of the basic financial statements and can be 
found in Exhibit A-9. 

Other information—In addition to the basic financial statements and accornpanying 
notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary information (RSI) 
concerning original and final budgetary cornparisons to actual results for the year for the 
Town's major governmental fund, which is the General Fund. Additionally, the Town 
presents certain RSI related to the Town's participation in the Louisiana State 
Ernployees' Retirement Systern. 

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds 

The general government operations of the Town are accounted for in the General Fund. 
The focus of this fund, as noted earlier, is to provide information on near-terrn inflows, 
outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such inforrnation is useful in assessing the 
Town's financing requirements. The following is a surnmary of general governrnental 
operations: 

  

(In thousands) 

General Fund 

 

?0?4 

  

2023 

Revenues $ 1,598 $ 1,639 

Expenditures 

 

1,236 

 

1,344 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 

 

362 

 

295 

Other financing sources 

 

-)7 

 

16 

Net change in fund balance 

 

389 

 

311 

Beginning fund balance 

 

1,413 

 

1,102 

Ending fund balance $ 1,802 $ 1,413 

The Town's General Fund experienced an increase in fund balance of approxirnately 
$389,000 during 2024, which is primarily related to a decrease in capital outlay 
expenditures of $158,000. The Town's intergovernrnental grants and contributions 
increased by $64,000, although tax revenues decreased by $178,000, of which $175,000 
was sales tax related. At year end, fund balance was approximately $1,802,000, of which 
approxirnately $1,547,000 was unassigned and available for utilization at the Town's 
discretion. Of the remaining balance, approxirnately $255,000 relates to restricted fund 
balances where constraints have been established by parties outside the Town by enabling 
legislation. 
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Sources of governmental revenues, excluding other financing sources, are summarized 
below. 

  

(In thousands) 

  

2024 

 

2023 

 

Source of Revenue 

    

Taxes 1,074 67% $ 1,252 76% 

Licenses and perrnits 117 7% 117 7% 

Intergovernmental 299 19% 205 13% 

Other revenues 108 7% 65 4% 

Total 1,598 100% $ 1,639 100% 

Revenues of the prirnaty government for governrnental fund types for 2024 were 
approximately $1,598,000 compared to approxirnately $1,639,000 for the previous year. 
The Town's total revenue decreased by $41,000, prirnarily due to a $178,000 decrease in 
tax revenues coupled with an increase in grants and contributions and investrnent incorne 
of $94,000 and $36,000, respectively. As noted above, the Town's activities are largely 
supported by tax revenues, which represent 67% of total governmental resources. 

  

(In thousands) 

  

2024 

 

2023 

 

Function 

    

General government $ 329 27% $ 284 21% 

Public safety 425 34% 436 32% 

Highways and streets 328 27% 305 23% 

Culture and recreation 87 7% 94 7% 

Capital outlay 67 5% 225 17% 

Total 1,236 100% $ 1,344 100% 

Expenditures of the primary governrnent decreased in 2024 by $108,000 or 8%. The 
change is related to decreased expenditures for capital outlay of $158,000. 

(Continued) 
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GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

Over the course of the year the Town's General Fund's budget was amended. The 
amendrnent of the operating budget is a custornary practice of the Town for changes that 
occur with financial related matters throughout the fiscal year. The most significant changes 
during 2024, are as follows: 

• Sales tax revenues were decreased by $83,000, 
• A decrease in capital grants and contributions revenue of $500,500, 
• Capital outlay expenditures were increased by $690,900, 
• A decrease in public safety of $23,600, 
• An increase in highway and streets expenditures of $20,000, 
• A decrease in debt service expenditures of $40,000. 

Overall, the decreases in appropriations (expenditures) were $718,500, which resulted in the 
final budgeted appropriation of $1,402,100. Additionally, budgeted expenditures exceeded 
actual expenditures by $166,000. 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

At the end of 2024, the Town had approximately $2.6 million invested in a range of capital 
assets, including vehicles, computer equiprnent, office furniture, land, buildings, water 
distribution systems, and sewer treatment systems. This arnount represents a net decrease of 
$132,000, or 5%, frorn the prior fiscal year end. 

   

(In thousands) 

   

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-type 
Activities Totals 

 

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 

Land 128 128 $ 60 $ 60 188 188 
Construction in progress 41 219 

 

373 41 592 
Infrastructure 205 

   

205 

 

Buildings and improvements 598 6()2 

  

598 6()2 
Improvements other than 

buildings 406 443 

  

406 443 
Equipment and vehicles 50 66 46 57 96 123 
Sewer system 

  

898 588 898 588 
Water distribution system 

  

181 209 181 209 

Total assets, net of 
depreciation $ 1,428 $ 1,458 $ 1,185 $ 1,287 $ 2,613 $ 2,745 

The Town elected to capitalize infrastructure assets on a prospective basis as a Phase 3 
governrnent, which is provided by GASB No. 34. More detailed inforrnation about the 
Town's capital assets is presented in Note 7 to the financial statements. 
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Long-term Liabilities 

At the end of 2024, the Town had $9,400 in long-term liabilities cornpared to $11,300 at 
the end of 2023. An decrease of approxirnately $2,100 is directly attributable to the 
change to Town's net pension liability. The Town's outstanding long-term liabilities at 
June 30, 2024 is as shown below: 

Outstanding Outstandim, Due Within 

July 1, 2023 Additions Reductions June 30, 2024 One Year  

Net pension liability $ 11,264 $ - S 1,893 $ 9,371 $  

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S GENERAL FUND BUDGET 

The Town's elected and appointed officials considered rnany factors when setting the 
fiscal-year 2025 budget and tax rates. One of those factors is the economy. The largest 
taxpayers in the surrounding area are prirnarily companies involved in the oil refining and 
petrochemical processing sector. These cornpanies impact the local economy of the Town 
and its businesses. These industrial cornpanies are significantly impacted by the change 
national econorny and related production dernands. As a result, the local econorny can be 
impacted. 

An irnportant factor affecting the General Fund budget is the Town's sales tax collections 
that approxirnate 79% of budgeted revenue and other financing sources. The Town 
budgeted an increase in revenue of approximately $236,000 for 2025 compared to actual 
2024 results due to an increase in capital grants. Additionally, the Town is projecting an 
increase in expenditures of $675,000 cornpared to 2024 actuals. If these estirnates are 
realized during 2024, fund balance for the Town's General Fund will decrease by 
approxirnately $6,000 compared to an increase in fund balance of $389,000 during 2024. 

Contacting the Town's Financial Managernent 

This financial report is designed to provide the citizens, taxpayers, custorners, investors 
and creditors with a general overview of the Town's finances and to show accountability 
for the rnoney the Town receives. Questions about this report or need additional financial 
inforrnation, contact the Town's Finance Office at (225) 675-5337 or P.O. Box 65, 
Sorrento, LA 70778. 
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Exhibit A 

TOWN OF SORRENTO, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

June 30, 2024 

ASSETS 

 

Primary Government 

 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities Total 

   

Cash and cash equivalents 1,551,851 15,745 $ 1,567,596 

Accounts receivable, net 42,555 15,631 58,186 
Internal balances 58,489 (58,489) 

 

Due froin other govertunents 90,669 - 90,669 

Restricted cash 260.880 25,659 286.539 

Capital assets: 

   

Non-depreciable 168,767 60,366 229,133 

Depreciable, net 1,259,623 1.124.419 2,384,042 

Total assets 3,432,834 1,183,331 4,616,165 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred outflows related to pension liability 1,444 

 

1,444 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 3,434,278 1,183,331 S 4,617,609 

LIABILITIES 

   

Accounts payable 55,971 13,596 69,567 

Customer prepayiuent on utility charges - 5,743 5,743 

Unearned grant advance 125,000 - 125,000 

Payable from restricted assets 21,301 25,938 47,239 
Long-term liabilities: 

   

Net pension liability 9,371 

 

9,371 

Total liabilities 211.643 45,277 256.970 

NET POSITION 

   

Net investment in capital assets 1,428,390 1,075.556 2,503,946 

Restricted for: 

   

Recreational services 144,959 

 

144,959 

Public safetv 20,456 - 20,456 
Senior citizen assistance 89,447 - 89,447 

Uarestricted 1,539,383 62,498 1,601,881 

Total net position 3,222,635 1,138,054 4,360,689 

Total liabilities and net position $ 3,434,278 $ 1,183,331 $ 4,617,609 

Notes on Exliibit A-9 are an integral part of this statetnent. 
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Exhibit A-1  

TOWN OF SORRENTO, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the year ended June 30, 2074 

Functions/Programs 

Primary government: 

Governtnental activities: 

Prooram Revenues 

 

Net (Expenses) Revenue and 
Changes in Net Position 

Operating Capital 

Charges for Gnints and Grants and 

Expenses Senices Contributions Contributions 

Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total 

     

General government S 425,453 133,404 $ 248,070 $ 30,076 S (13,903) $ - (13,903) 

Public safety: 

     

Police 388,016 1,019 

 

(386,997) 

 

(386,997) 

Fire 36,882 

 

(36,882) 

 

(36,882) 

Highways and streets 265,206 21,050 (244,156) 

 

(244,156) 
Culture and recreation 142,884 28,300 

 

(114,584) 

 

(114,584) 

Total governmental activities 1,258,441 162,723 248.070 51.126 (796,522) 

 

(796.522) 

Business-type activities: 

     

Utility operations 355.252 246,481 

  

(108.771) (108.771) 

Total primary government $ 1,613,693 $ 409,204 $ 248.070 $ 51.126 (796,522) (108.771) (905.293) 

 

General revenues: 

     

Taxes: 

     

Sales 

 

869,164 

 

869,164 

 

Franchise 

 

112,380 

 

112,380 

 

Ad valorem 

 

90,086 

 

90,086 

 

Other 

 

2.059 

 

2,059 

 

Gain on sale of capital assets 

 

4,243 

 

4,243 

 

Investment income 

 

54,218 5.056 59,274 

 

Miscellaneous 

 

7,917 

 

7,917 

 

Transfers 

 

16,500 (16.500) 

  

Total general revenues 

 

1,156,567 (11,444) 1,145,123 

 

Change in net position 

 

360,045 (120,215) 239,830 

 

Net position - beginning of year 

 

2,862,590 1,258,269 4,120,859 

 

Net position - end of year 

 

$ 3.222.635 $ 1.138.054 $ 4.360.689 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit A-2 

TOWN OF SORRENTO, LOLTISIANA 

BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUND 

June 30, 2024 

 

General 

Fund 

ASSETS 

 

Cash and cash equivalents 1,551,851 

Accounts receivable, net 42,555 

Due from other governments 90,669 

Due frorn Utility Fund 58,489 

Restricted cash 260,880 

Total assets $ 2,()()4,444 

LIABILITIES 

 

Accounts payable and accnied liabilities 55,971 

Unearned grant advance 125,000 

Payable frorn restricted assets 21,301 

Total liabilities 202,272 

FUND BALANCE 

Restricted for: 

 

Recreational services 144,959 

Public safety 20,456 

Senior citizen assistance 89,447 

Unassigned 1 547,310 

Total fund balance 1,802,172 

Total liabilities and fund balance $ 2,004,444 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit A-3  

TOWN OF SORRENTO, LOUISIANA 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND 

BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

June 30, 2024 

Total net position reported for gove ) ental activities in the statement of net 
position is different because: 

  

Total fund balance - governmental fund (Exhibit A-2) 

 

$ 1,802,172 

Capital assets used in governmental activities that are not financial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 

Pension related obligations are not due and payable with current 

resources and, therefore, are not reported in govermental funds. 

Net pension liability (9,371) 

1,428,39(1 

Deferred outflows related to pension liability 1,444 (7,927) 

Net position of governmental activities (Exhibit A) 

 

$ 3,222,635 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhib A-4 

TOWN OF SORRENTO, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

GOVERNMENTAL FUND 

For the year ended June 30, 2024 

 

General 
Fund 

REVENUES 

Taxes: 

 

Sales and use 869,164 

Franchise 112,380 

Ad valorem 90,086 

Other 7,059 

Charges for services: 

 

Licenses and permits 117,075 

Rental and service fees 44,629 

Fines 1,019 

Grants and contributions 299,196 

Investment income 54,218 

Miscellaneous 7,917 

Total revenues 1,597,743 

EXPENDITURES 

Current function: 

 

General government 318,711 

Public safetv: 

 

Police 388,016 

Fire 36,882 

Highways and streets 328,035 

Culture and recreation 87,465 

Capital outlay 66,718 

Total expenditures 1,235,838 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 361,905 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

 

Transfers in 16,500 

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 10.190 

Total other financing sources 26.690 

Net change in fund balance 388,595 

FUND BALANCE 

 

Beginning of year 1,413,577 

End of year $ 1,802,172 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit A-5  

TOWN OF SORRENTO, LOUISIANA 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND TO 

THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the year ended June 30, 2024 

The change in net position reported for govern ental activities in the statement 
of activities is different because: 

Net change in fund balance - total governmental fiind (Exhibit A-4) 

 

$ 388,595 

Governmental fwids report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in 
the statement of activities, the cost of those assets are allocated over their 
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the 
amount by which depreciation exceeded capital outlay. 

  

Capital outlay 66,718 

 

Depreciation expense (90,256) (23,538) 

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital 
assets, such as sales, trade-ins, and donations, is to decrease net position. 

 

(5,947) 

Changes in net pension obligations are reported only in the Statement 
of Activities. 

 

935 

Change in net position of governmental activities (Exhibit A-1) 

 

360,045 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit A-6 

TOWN OF SORRENTO, LOUISIANA 

PROPRIETARY FUND - UTILITY FUND 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

June 30, 2024 

ASSETS 

Current assets: 

 

Cash and cash equivalents 15,745 

Accounts receivable, net 15,631 

Restricted cash - utility deposits 25,659 

Total current assets 57,035 

NONCURRENT ASSETS 

Capital assets: 

 

Non-depreciable 60,366 

Depreciable, net 1,124,419 

Total noncurrent assets 1,184,785 

Total assets 1,241,820 

LIABILITIES 

Current liabilities: 

 

Accounts payable 13,596 

Customer prepayment on utility charges 5,743 

Due to General Fund 58,489 
Payable from restricted assets 25,938 

Total current liabilities 103,766 

NET POSITION 

 

Net investment in capital assets 1,075,556 

Unrestricted 62,498 

Total net position 1,138,054 

Total liabilities and net position 1,24 820 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit A-7 

TOWN OF SORRENTO, LOUISIANA 

PROPRIETARY FUND - UTILITY FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

For the vear ended June 30, 2024 

OPERATING REVENUES 

Charges for services: 

 

Garbage 163,070 

Sewer 74,094 

Penalties 3,853 
Water franchise fees 5,464 

Total operating reve ues 246,481 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

 

Garbage 152,945 

Sewer 95,822 

Administrative 4,236 

Depreciation 102,249 

Total operating expenses 355,252 

Operating loss (108,771) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES 

 

Investment incorne 5,056 

Loss before transfers (103,715) 

Transfers out (16,500) 

Change in net position (120.215) 

NET POSITION 

 

Beginning of year 1,258,269 

End of year 1,138,054 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit A-8 

TOWN OF SORRENTO, LOUISIANA 

PROPRIETARY FUND - UTILITY FUND 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

For the year ended June 30, 2024 

Business-type 
Activities - 
Enterprise 

Fund 
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from customers 247,154 
Payments to suppliers (252,770) 

Net cash usecl for operating activities (5,616) 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Repayments on amounts due to General Fund 
Rededication of unearned grant proceecls 
Transfers to other funds 

(6,323) 
(235,570) 
(16,500)    

Net cash used Ibr noncapital and related tinancing activities (258,393) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Investment income 5,056 

Net decrease in cash (258,953) 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Beginning of period 300,357 

End of period $ 41,404  

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO 
NET CASH USED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Operating loss 
Adjustments for non-cash items: 

Depreciation 
Change in operating assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable 
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 

Net used for operating activities 

$ (1(18,771) 

102,249 

1,114  
(208) 

(5,616) 

RECONCILIATION OF CASH TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION: 
Cash 15,745 
Restricted cash 25,659 

Total cash and cash equivalents x 41,404 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit A-9 

TOWN OF SORRENTO, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Statement Presentation 

Located in Ascension Parish, the Town of Sorrento (the Town) was incorporated in 1956 
and is a political subdivision of the State of Louisiana. The Town, under the provisions of 
the Lawrason Act, enacts ordinances, sets policy, and establishes programs in such fields 
as public safety, highways and streets, and culture and recreation. 

The financial statements of the Town have been prepared in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its 
pronouncernents (Staternents and Interpretations). The rnore significant accounting policies 
established in GAAP and used by the Town are described below. 

The financial statements cornply with GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements 
- and Management's Discussion and Analysis - .for State and Local Governments (GASB 
34) and include the following: 

• A Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section providing an analysis of the 
Town's overall financial position and results of operations, 

• Financial staternents prepared using accrual accounting for all of the Town's activities, 
including infrastnicture (roads, bridges, etc.), and 

• Fund financial staternents to focus on the major fiinds. 

Reporting Entity 

As the rnunicipal governing authority, for reporting purposes, the Town is considered a 
separate financial reporting entity. The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary 
municipal government, and where applicable (b) organizations for which the primary 
government is financially accountable, and (c) other organizations for which the nature and 
significance of their relationship with the prirnary government are such that exclusion 
would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 

(Continued) 
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Exhibit A-9 
(Continued) 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Reporting Entity (Continued) 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, as arnended by 
GASB Staternent No. 61, established criteria for determining which cornponent units should 
be considered part of the Town for financial reporting purposes. The basic criterion for 
including a potential cornponent unit within the reporting entity is financial accountability. 

The criteria for determining which cornponent units should be considered part of the Town 
for financial reporting purposes are as follows: 

1. Appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing body and, 

a. The ability of the Town to irnpose its will on that organization andlor 

b. The potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or 
impose specific financial burdens on the Town. 

2. Organizations for which the Town does not appoint a voting rnajority but which are 
fiscally dependent on the Town. 

3. Organizations for which the reporting entity financial statements would be rnisleading if 
data of the organization is not included because of the nature or significance of the 
relationship. 

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial staternents are 
presented by the Town; there are no cornponent units to be either blended within the 
Town's funds or discretely presented in these financial statements. 

Basis of Presentation 

The Town's basic financial statements consist of the government-wide statements of the 
primary i4overnment and the fund financial statements (individual major funds). The 
Town's financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of Arnerica and applied to governmental units. 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The governrnent-wide financial statements include the statement of net position and the 
statement of activities for all non-fiduciary activities of the Town. As a general rule, the 
effect of interfund activity has been removed frorn these statements. The governrnent-wide 
presentation focuses primarily on the sustainability of the governrnent as an entity and the 
change in aggregate financial position resulting frorn the activities of the fiscal period. 
These statements distinguish between the governrnental and business-type activities of the 
Town. 
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Exhibit A-9 
(Continued) 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Government-wide Financial Statements (Continued) 

Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, 
and other nonexchange revenues. 

Business tvpe activities are financed in whole or part by fees charged to external parties for 
utility services provided. The Town provides sewer services, garbage services, and leases a 
water distribution system to a private contractor in which the Town receives franchise fees. 
These are services are classified as business-type activities. 

The government-wide staternent of activities dernonstrates the degree to which the direct 
expenses of a given function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are 
those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues 
include: (1) charges to custorners or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit froin 
goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or business-type activity, and (2) 
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items not properly included among 
prograin revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements are very sirnilar to the traditional government fund staternents 
as prepared by governments prior to the issuance of GASB No. 34. Ernphasis is now on the 
major funds in either the governmental or business-type categories. Non-major funds (by 
categoiy) or fund type are summarized into a single column in the basic financial 
statements. The Town does not have any non-rnajor funds in 2024. 

The daily operations of the Town continue to be organized on the basis of funds, each of 
which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are 
accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, 
liabilities, equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Funds are 
organized into three inajor categories: governrnental, proprietary and fiduciary. The Town 
does not have any fiduciary funds. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the 
governmental and proprietary categories. 

A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the Town (the General 
Fund) or meets the following criteria: 

• Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expense of that individual 
governinental fund or enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total 
for all funds of that category or type; and 

• Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual 
governrnental fund or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for 
all governrnental and enterprise funds combined. 
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Exhibit A-9 
(Continued) 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

Also, the Town rnay elect to treat any fund as a rnajor fund that may not rneet the above 
criteria. The Town considers the General Fund and the Utility Fund as major funds. 

Governrnent resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the 
purpose for which they are to be expended and the rneans by which spending activities are 
controlled. The various fimds of the prirnary governrnent presented in the financial 
staternents are described as follows: 

Governmental fund types 

Governrnental funds are those through which rnost governrnental functions of the Town are 
financed. The acquisition, use, and balances of expendable financial resources and related 
liabilities of the Town are accounted for through governrnental funds. Measurement is 
focused upon determining changes in financial position, rather than net income. The 
following are the governrnental fund types of the Town: 

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. It is used to 
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
The General Fund is always a rnajor fund. 

Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of 
specific revenue sources (other than rnajor capital projects) that are legally restricted to 
expenditures for specified purposes. The Town does not rnaintain any special revenue 
funds. 

Debt Service Funds - Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of 
resources for and the payrnent of general long-term debt principal, interest, and related 
costs. The Town does not rnaintain any debt service funds. 

Capital Projects Funds - Capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources 
to be used for the acquisition or construction of rnajor capital facilities other than those 
financed by proprietary funds. The Town does not rnaintain any capital projects fiinds. 

Proprietary Fund/Enterprise Fund Types - Enterprise funds are used to account for 
operations (1) that are fmanced and operated in a rnanner sirnilar to private business 
enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that the costs and expenses, including 
depreciation, of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be 
financed or recovered prirnarily through user charges; or (2) where the governing body has 
decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net 
income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, 
accountability, or other purposes. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and 
expenses from non-operating iterns. Operating revenues and expenses generally result frorn 
providing services in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. 
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Exhibit A-9 
(Continued) 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Governmental fund types (continued) 

Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, 
administrative expenses, and depreciation of capital assets. All revenues and expenses not 
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. The Town 
considers the Utility Fund a rnajor fund. 

Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus 

Government-wide financial statements 

The government-wide financial staternents are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned 
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the tirning of the related 
cash flows. Property taxes are recognized in the year for which they are assessed. 

Program revenues for governrnental activities include operating and capital grants, 
occupational licenses and permits, and special assessments. 

Fund financial statements 

All governmental funds are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement 
focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities are generally 
included in the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases 
(revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing 
uses) in net current assets. Governmental funds are maintained on the modified accrual 
basis of accounting. Governmental fund revenues resulting from exchange transactions are 
recognized in the fiscal year in which the exchange takes place and meets the government's 
availability criteria (susceptible to accrual). "Available" means collectible within the current 
period or within 60 days after year-end. Charges for services and governmental 
miscellaneous revenues, are recorded as earned since they are measurable and available. 

Nonexchange transactions, in which the Town receives value without directly giving value 
in return, includes sales tax, ad valorern tax, federal and state grants, and special 
assessrnents. Ad valorern taxes are recorded in the year the taxes are assessed. Ad valorern 
taxes are assessed on a calendar year basis, becorne due on November 15th of each year, 
and becorne delinquent after December 31st. The taxes are generally collected in December, 
January and February of each year. Sales taxes are recorded when in the possession of the 
intermediary collecting agent and are recognized as revenue at that time. Federal and state 
grants are recorded as revenue when the Town is entitled to the funds, generally 
corresponding to when grant related costs are incurred by the Town, but subject to the 
availability criteria. Special assessrnents are recorded when the Town has an enforceable 
legal claim on those resources. 
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Exhibit A-9 
(Continued) 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus (Continued) 

Fund financial statements (Continued) 

Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the related fund liability is 
incurred, if measurable, except for (1) unmatured interest on general long-term debt which 
is recognized when due, and (2) clairns and judgrnents and compensated absences are 
recorded as expenditures in the governrnental fund type when paid with expendable 
financial resources. Allocations of costs such as depreciation and arnortization are not 
recognized in the governrnental funds. 

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement 
focus. Proprietary funds are rnaintained on the accrual basis of accounting, wherein revenues 
are recognized in the accounting period in which they are earned and become measurable, 
and expenses are recognized in the period incurred, if measurable. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents for the Town include the Louisiana Asset Management Pool 
(LAMP) account and each individual fund's share of the consolidated operating cash 
accounts. 

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the 
counter party, the Town will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The investrnent policy of the Town 
is governed by state statutes that include depository and custodial contract provisions. The 
Town invests funds in accordance with L.R.S. 39:1211-1245 and 33:2955 which include, 
but are not lirnited to, United States treasury bonds, treasury notes, treasury bills, and fully 
collateralized interest-bearing checking, accounts and certificates of deposit. Other 
provisions require depositories to insure or collateralize all deposits in accordance with 
state law and require securities collateralizing deposits to be held by an independent third 
party with whom the Town has a custodial agreement. The Town prirnarily utilizes the 
Louisiana Asset Managernent Pool to invest idle funds and records arnounts invested at fair 
value. 

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, liquid investments of the enterprise fund with 
a maturity of three months or less are considered to be cash equivalents. 

The Town categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy 
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the 
valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices 
in active rnarkets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; 
Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. See Note 2. 
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Exhibit A-9 
(Continued) 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Accounts Receivable 

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end 
and not yet received. For governmental activities, uncollectible arnounts due for receivables 
are recognized as bad debts and directly charged off at the tirne inforrnation becornes 
available which indicates that the particular receivable is not collectible. In governmental 
fund types, the uncollectible arnount is charged to the revenue reported. In business-type 
activities, uncollectible amounts due from utility billing receivables are recognized as bad 
debts through the use of an allowance account or are directly charged off at the tirne 
information becornes available which indicates that the particular receivable is not 
collectible. An allowance for doubtful accounts of $100,000 and $1,700 in the General 
Fund and Utility Fund, respectively, was recorded at June 30, 2024. 

Inventories 

The Town does not record any inventories of rnaterials or supplies. These items are 
recorded as expenditures when purchased rather than when consurned. Materials and 
supplies on hand at year end are not considered rnaterial and, accordingly, the failure to 
record such inventories is not considered to be a significant departure from generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

Leased Asset Receivable 

Leased asset receivables are a result of leases in which the Town has entered into a contract 
with a lessee that delivers the right to use a nonfinancial asset of the Town as specified by the 
contract for a period of tirne in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. Such receivables 
are reported on the governrnent-wide financial staternents at present value of the lease 
payments to be received during the lease term. Additionally, the Town would recognize a 
deferred inflow of resources that is reported at the value of the lease receivable plus any 
payrnents received at or before the commencement of the lease for future periods. Assets of 
agreement entered into in which the Town is the lessor are retained as capital assets of the 
Town and are reported in the governrnent-wide financial statements as described under 
Capital Assets. The Town has not entered into any agreernents delivering, control of a right to 
use a nonfinancial asset to a lessee as described at June 30, 2024. 

Interfund Receivables and Payables 

During the course of operations, transactions rnay occur between individual funds. Those 
related to short-terrn borrowings are classified as "due from other funds" or "due to other 
funds" on the balance sheet. Interfund receivables and payables between funds within 
governmental activities are elirninated in the Staternent of Net Position. Any residual 
balances outstanding between the governrnental activities and business-type activities are 
reported in the government-wide financial staternents as "internal balances." The Utility 
Fund owed the General Fund $58,489 at June 30, 2024. 
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Exhibit A-9 
(Continued) 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Right-of-Use Assets 

Right-of-use assets are a result of leases in which the Town has entered into a contract with 
a lessor that conveys control of the right to use the lessor's nonfinancial asset as specified 
by the contract for a period of tirne in an exchange-like transaction. Such assets are reported 
on the governrnent-wide statements net of arnortization. Right-of-use assets are amortized at 
the lesser of the useful life or lease term. The Town has not entered into any agreements 
gaining control of the right to use a lessor's nonfinancial assets as described above at June 
30, 2024. 

Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements 

Subscription-based inforrnation technology arrangernents (SBITA) are a contract that 
conveys control of the right to use another party's information technology software, alone 
or in combination with tangible capital assets, as specified in the contract for a period of 
time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. Such assets are reported on the 
government-wide financial staternent net of arnortization. SBITA are arnortized during the 
extent of the agreement. The Town has not entered into any rnaterial agreernents gaining 
control of the right to use another party's infonnation technology as described above at 
June 30, 2024. 

Capital Assets 

The accounting treatment of property, plant, and equipment (capital assets) depends on 
whether the assets are used in governrnental fund operations or proprietary fund operations 
and whether they are reported in the government-wide or fund financial staternents. 

Government-wide Statements 

In the governrnent-wide financial statements, long-terrn assets are accounted for as capital 
assets, which include land and land improvements, buildings, equiprnent, furniture and 
infrastructure assets (streets, roads, bridges, sewer and drainage systems). All capital assets 
are valued at historical cost or estiinated historical cost if actual cost is unavailable. 
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated acquisition value at the date of donation. 
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized at the completion of 
construction projects. 

The costs of normal rnaintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend asset lives are expensed. 

Prior to the implementation of GASB 34 the infrastructure assets of the Town's 
governrnental funds were capitalized but not depreciated. These assets are cornprised of the 
streets maintained by the Town and have been valued at historical cost. 

31 



Exhibit A-9 
(Continued) 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Capital Assets (Continued) 

Government-wide Statements (Continued) 

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the 
Statement of Activities, with accurnulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net 
Position. Depreciation is provided over the assets' estimated useful lives using the straight-
line rnethod of depreciation. 

The range of estirnated useful lives by type of asset is as follows: 

Infrastructure 15 years 
Buildings 25 - 40 years 
Improvements 10 years 
Machinery and equipment 3 - 20 years 

Fund Financial Statements 

In the fund financial staternents, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are not 
capitalized. Instead, capital acquisition and construction are reflected as expenditures in the 
governrnental funds. Capital assets used in proprietary fund operations are accounted for in 
the sarne manner as in government-wide staternents. 

Property, plant, and equiprnent used by the proprietary funds are stated at cost. Interest 
costs incurred during construction periods are capitalized. Depreciation has been provided 
over the estirnated useful lives of the assets using the straight-line rnethod. The estirnated 
usefiil lives are as follows: 

Lines, rneters, & sewer systerns 50 years 
Water well, tank & pump 10 - 25 years 
Equiprnent 5 - 20 years 

Long-term Liabilities 

The accounting treatment of long-terrn liabilities depends on whether the assets are 
used in governmental fund operations or proprietaiy fund operations and whether they are 
reported in the governrnent-wide or fund financial staternents. 

In the governrnent-wide staternent of net position and in the proprietary fund financial 
statements, long-term debt is reported as a liability. The long-terrn debt consists 
primarily of utility revenue bonds and certificates of indebtedness for public irnprovements. 

(Continued) 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Long-term Debt (Continued) 

Long-terrn debt for governrnental funds is not reported as a liability in the fund financial 
staternents. Instead, the debt proceeds are reported as other financing sources, and payment 
of principal and interest is reported as expenditures. The accounting for proprietary fund 
debt is the sarne in the fund staternents as it is in the ttovemment-wide staternents. The 
Town is not obligated for any special assessrnent debt. 

Compensated Absences 

GASB Staternent No. 16 provides that vacation leave should be accnied as a liability as the 
benefits are earned if (1) the rights to receive the compensation are attributable to services 
already rendered and, (2) it is probable that the ernployee will be compensated through paid 
time off or cash payment upon terrnination or retirernent. Permanent, full-time employees 
earn annual leave on the anniversary date of their employment based upon years of service. 
Such leave may not carry over or accumulate frorn one anniversary date to another. 
Additionally, since vacation leave is not paid upon retirement or termination, there is no 
accrual of the liability for unused vacation leave. 

GASB Statement No. 16 requires the accnial for sick leave to the extent it is probable that 
benefits will be paid in cash upon termination or retirement rather than as payrnents for 
absences due to illness or other contingency. Sick leave is earned at the rate of one day per 
month to a rnaxirnurn of ten days per year, and no more than thirty days rnay be accurnulated 
at any time. Policy provides that sick leave is paid only for designated absences and that no 
payment for accrued sick leave is rnade upon retirement or termination. Therefore, accrual of 
the liability for unused sick leave is not required. 

The Town has the following policy relating to vacation and sick leave: 

Each full time employee is entitled to 10 days vacation and 5 days sick leave for each year 
worked. For those full time employees hired prior to August 18, 1992, vacation benefits 
increase after 10 years worked to 15 days, and after 15 years worked to 20 days. These 
benefits are non-cunnilative and rnust be taken when due. As a result, no liability is 
recorded in these financial statements. 

Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pensions liability, defened outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about 
the fiduciary net position of the Louisiana State Employees' Retirement Systern (LASERS) 
and additions to/deductions frorn LASERS fiduciary net position have been determined on 
the same basis as they are reported by LASERS. For this purpose, benefit payrnents 
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with the benefit terrns. Investrnents are reported at fair value. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position or Balance Sheet will sornetimes report 
a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial elernent, 
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a 
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expenditure) until 
then. The Town has one itern that qualifies for this categoiy, which is deferred outflows 
related to pension liability, which is reported in the government-wide statement. 

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position or Balance Sheet will sometirnes 
report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial element, 
defeiTed inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a 
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) at that 
tirne. The Town's deferred inflows related to net pension liability and unavailable revenues 
are the only amounts that qualify for this category. Deferred inflows are recognized in the 
period that the resources become available. 

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Net Position 

Government-wide and proprietary fund net position is divided into three components: 

• Net investment in capital assets - consist of the historical cost of capital assets less 
accumulated depreciation and less any debt that remains outstanding that was used to 
finance those assets. 

• Restricted - consist of net position that is restricted by the Town Charter, the Town 
Code, Town's creditors (for example, through debt covenants), by state enabling 
legislation (through restrictions on shared revenues), by grantors (both federal and state), 
and by other contributors. 

• Unrestricted - all other net position is reported in this category. 

Governmental Fund Balances 

In the governmental fund financial staternents, fund balances are classified as follows: 

• Nonspendable - Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in a nonspendable 
form or because they are legally or contractually required to be rnaintained intact. 

• Restricted - Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of the Town 
Charter, the Town Code, state or federal laws, or externally irnposed conditions by 
o-rantors or creditors. 

• Cornmitted - Arnounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a 
formal action by Town Council ordinance or resolution. 

• Assigned - Amounts that are designated by the Mayor for a particular purpose but are 
not spendable until a budget ordinance is passed or there is a majority vote approval (for 
capital projects or debt service) by the Town Council. 

• Unassigned - All amounts not included in other spendable classifications. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Use of Restricted Resources 

When an expense is incurred in government and business-type activities that can be paid 
using either restricted or unrestricted resources (net position), the Town's policy is to first 
apply the expense to the restricted net position before unrestricted net position is utilized. 

When an expenditure is incuned in governmental funds that can be paid using either 
restricted or unrestricted resources (fund balance), the Town's policy is to apply the 
expenditure in the following priority: 1) restricted fiind balance, 2) committed fund balance, 
3) assigned fiind balance, and 4) unassigned fund balance. 

Interfund Transfers 

Advances between funds which are not expected to be repaid are accounted for as transfers. 
For the purposes of the Statement of Activities, all interfund transfers between individual 
governmental funds have been eliminated. 

In those cases where repayment is expected, the advances are accounted for through the 
various interfund accounts. 

Budget Policy and Budgetary Accounting 

A proposed budget is prepared and submitted by the Mayor to the Town Council prior to 
the beginning of each fiscal year. A budget summary and notice of a public hearing is 
published with the public hearing being conducted prior to the commencement of the 
budget year. 

The annual operating budget, prepared on the rnodified-accnial basis, covers the General 
Fund. At the end of the fiscal year, unexpended appropriations autornatically lapse. Budget 
arnendments are approved by the Town Council and are included in the financial 
statements. 

In connection with budget preparation, a portion of the unassigned fund balance of an 
individual fimd rnay be designated for expenditures of the subsequent year. Such 
designation represents the extent to which the fund balance is used to balance the 
subsequent year's operating budget of that fund, as reflected in the legally adopted budget. 

(Continued) 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Restricted Cash 

Restricted cash on the balance sheet of the General Fund represents cash received from the 
restricted sales tax for the purposes of recreation, fire protection and senior citizen 
programs. Additionally, arnounts collected by the Town for utility deposits, special 
assessments, bail bonds, and confiscated property have been classified as restricted. 

Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires rnanagernent to rnake estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
arnounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements. They may also affect the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses of proprietary funds and the governrnent-wide financial staternents during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ frorn those estirnates. Estirnates are used 
prirnarily when accounting for the allowance for uncollectible accounts and related 
depreciation, net pension liabilities and related deferred inflows and outflows of resources. 

Current Accounting Standards Implemented 

During the year, the Town irnplernented policies established under GASB Staternent No. 
99, Onniibus, to enhance the comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to 
irnprove the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing (1) practice issues that 
have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Staternents 
and (2) accounting and financial reporting for financial guarantees. 

As of June 30, 2024, the Town adopted GASB Statement No. 100„4ccounling Changes 
and Error Corrections — an Arnendrnent of GASB Staternent No. 62. This Staternent 
defines accounting changes as changes in accounting principles, changes in accounting 
estimates, and changes to or within the financial reporting entity and describes the 
transactions or other events that constitute those changes. These changes in accounting 
principles and eiTor corrections should be reported retroactively by restating prior periods in 
addition to these changes being identified in the financial staternent disclosures. 

Subsequent Events 

In preparing these financial staternents, the Town has evaluated events and transactions for 
potential recognition or disclosure through November 22, 2024, the date the financial 
staternents were available to be issued. See Note 13. 

NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EQUILVALENTS 

The Town may invest in United States bonds, treasury notes, or certificates of deposit of 
state banks organized under the laws of Louisiana and national banks having their principal 
office in the State of Louisiana or other qualifying federally insured investrnents. 
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NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EQUILVALENTS (CONTINUED) 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a financial institution failure, the Town's 
deposits may not be returned to them. To mitigate this risk, state law requires deposits to 
be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent 
financial institution. As of June 30, 2024, the Town's deposits were not exposed to any 
custodial risk. 

As of June 30, 2024, the Town had a balance of $1,334,473 invested in LAMP. LAMP is 
administered by LAMP, Inc., a non-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State 
of Louisiana. Only local government entities having contracted to participate in LAMP 
have an investrnent interest in its pools of assets. The prirnary objective of LAMP is to 
provide a safe environrnent for the placernent of public funds in short-terrn, high quality 
investrnents. The LAMP portfolio includes only securities and other obligations in which 
local governrnents in Louisiana are authorized to invest in accordance with LA — R.S. 
33:2955. 

LAMP is an investment pool with the following characteristics: 

• Credit risk: LAMP is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor's. 

• Custodial risk: LAMP participants' investments in the pool are evidenced by shares 
of the pool. Investments in pools should be disclosed, but not categorized because 
they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book-entry form. The 
public entity's investment is with the pool, not the securities that make up the pool; 
therefore, no disclosure is required. 

• Concentration of credit risk: Pooled investrnents are excluded frorn the 5 percent 
disclosure requirernent. 

• Interest rate risk: LAMP is designed to be highly liquid to give its participants 
immediate access to their account balances. LAMP prepares its own interest rate 
risk disclosure using the weighted average rnaturity (WAM) rnethod. The WAM of 
LAMP assets is restricted to no rnore than 90 days and consists of no securities with 
a rnaturity in excess of 397 days or 762 days for U.S. Governrnent floating/variable 
rate investrnents. The WAM for LAMP's total investrnents is 70 days as of June 30, 
2024. 

• Foreign currency risk: Foreign currency risk is not applicable to LAMP 
investrnents. 

The investments in LAMP are stated at fair value. The fair value is deterrnined on a weekly 
basis by LAMP and the value of the position in the external investrnent pool is the same as 
the net asset value of the pool shares. 

LAMP, Inc. is subject to the regulatory oversight of the state treasurer and the board of 
directors. LAMP is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Comrnission as an 
investrnent cornpany. 
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NOTE 3 - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

Accounts receivable and related user fees from utility customers were comprised largely of 
residents in the Town. Most customers have made deposits to partially secure their 
outstanding balance. 

NOTE 4 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS 

At June 30, 2024, accounts receivable for the Town's funds consisted of the following: 

General Fund: 
Franchise taxes 
Licenses and permits 
Charges for services 

Total governmental activities 

$ 26,278 
9,833 
6,444 

42,555 

Utility Fund: 
User fees, net 15,631 

Total primary government $ 58,186 

Due from other governments at June 30, 2024 consisted of the following: 

General Fund: 

Sales & use tax $ 90,669 

Additionally, the Town has recorded an accounts receivable of $100,000 in special 
assessments due from Renaissance Orange Grove, L.L.C. (see Note 10). This amount is 
considered likely uncollectable by the Town, therefore, a provision for doubtful account 
has also been recorded of $100,000. 

NOTE 5 - RESTRICTED CASH 

Restricted cash at June 30, 2024 was as follows: 

 

Recreation $ 182,769 
Public safety - fire 17,465 
Senior citizens 57,995 
Public safety - police 2,651 

Total governmental activities $ 260,880 

Governmental activities restricted cash includes $153,474 held in LAMP investments, with 
the remaining $107,406 held in a demand deposit accounts. Business-type activities 
restricted cash of $25,659 is related to customer deposits held on utility services provided. 
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NOTE 6 - AD VALOREM TAXES 

The 1974 Louisiana Constitution (Article 7 Section 18) provided that land and 
irnprovements for residential purposes be assessed at 10% of fair rnarket value; other 
property and electric cooperative properties, excluding land, are to be assessed at 15%; and 
public service properties, excluding land, are to be assessed at 25% of fair rnarket value. 
Fair market value is determined by the elected assessor of the parish on all property subject 
to taxation except public service properties, which are valued by the Louisiana Tax 
Coinmission (LRS 47:1957). The correctness of assessrnents by the assessor is subject to 
review and certification by the Louisiana Tax Commission. The assessor is required to 
reappraise all property subject to taxation at intervals of not more than four years. 

All property taxes are recorded in governmental funds, and as explained in Note 1, 
revenues in governmental funds are recognized in the accounting period in which they 
become available and measurable. Property taxes are considered measurable in the calendar 
year of the tax levy. Accordingly, the taxes assessed for the calendar year falling within the 
current fiscal year are recorded as revenue. Property taxes are collected by the tax collector 
during the fiscal year and are therefore available to liquidate liabilities of the current 
period. 

Taxes are levied by the Town in September or October and are billed to the taxpayers in 
Novernber. Billed taxes become delinquent on Decernber 31'. Revenues frorn ad valorem 
taxes are budgeted in the year assessed. Ad valorern taxes attach as an enforceable lien on 
property as of January lst  of each year. 

For the year ended June 30, 2024, taxes of 6.21 mills were levied on property with assessed 
valuations totaling $13,686,550 and were dedicated to general governrnent. Total taxes 
levied and collected during 2024 were $84,999 and $90,086, respectively. 

(Continued) 
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NOTE 7 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

A summary of changes in capital assets for 

Gove rnme ntal a c tivitie s : 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

the year ended June 30, 2024, is as follows: 

Beginning Ending 

Balance Increases Decreases Balance 

   

Land $ 127,750 $ - $ - $ 127,750 

Construction in progress 218,513 41,017 218,513 41,017 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 346,263 41,017 218,513 168,767 

Capital assets being depreciated: 

   

Infrastructure 137,405 218,513 - 355,918 
Buildings and improvements 932,944 24,075 18,300 938,719 
Equipment and vehicles 455,525 1,626 457,151 

Improvements other than buildings 537,053 

 

537,053 

Total capital assets being depreciated 2,062,927 244,214 18,300 2,288,841 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

   

Infrastructure 137,404 13,354 150,758 
Buildings and improvenrnts 331,039 21,496 12,353 340,182 
Equipment and vehicles 389,027 18,566 407,593 

Improvements other than buildings 93,845 36,840 130,685 

Total accumulated depreciation 951,315 90,256 12,353 1,029,218 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 1,111,612 153,958 5,947 1,259,623 

Governmental capital assets, net $1,457,875 $194,975 $ 224,460 $1,428,390 

(Continued) 
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NOTE 7 - CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as 
follows: 

Governmental activities: 

Recreation $ 55,597 
General government 24,852 
Highway and streets 9,807 

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 90,256 

Business-type activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Beginning 

Balance Increases Decreases 

Ending 

Balance 

   

Land $ 60,366 $ - $ - $ 60,366 

Construction in progress 373,085 - 373,085 

 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 433,451 373,085 60,366 

Capital assets being depreciated: 

   

Sewer treatment plants 1,193,202 373,085 - 1,566,287 

Water system, tank, & pump 773,284 

 

773,284 
Equipment 116,514 

 

116,514 

Total capital assets being depreciated 2,083,000 373,085 2,456,085 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

   

Sewer treatment plants 605,452 62,828 668,280 

Water system, tank, & pump 564,335 28,595 592,930 
Equipment 59,630 10,826 70,456 

Total accumulated depreciation 1,229,417 102,249 1,331,666 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 853,583 270,836 - 1,124,419 

Business-type activities capital assets, net $1,287,034 $270,836 $ 373,085 $1,184,785 
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NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Governmental Activities 

The following is a summary of long-term liabilities transactions for the primary government 
for governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2024: 

Due Within 
July 1, 2023 Additions Reductions June 30, 2024 One Year  

Net pension liability $ 11,264 $ $ 1,893 $ 9,371 $  

NOTE 9 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 

The Town of Sorrento remits payments to Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System 
(LASERS). The system is a cost sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan 
administered by a separate board of trustees. Pertinent information relative to the plan is as 
follows: 

Plan Description 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement Systern 

The Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System (LASERS) was established for the 
purpose of providing retirement allowances and other benefits as stated under the 
provisions of La. R.S. 11:401, as amended, for eligible state officers, employees and their 
beneficiaries. The projection of benefit payments in the calculation of the total pension 
liability includes all benefits to be provided to current active and inactive employees 
through the System in accordance with the benefit terms and any additional legal 
agreements to provide benefits that are in force at the measurement date. 

The Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System has issued a stand-alone audit report 
their fmancial statements for the year ended June 30, 2023. Access to the report can be 
found on LASERS website, www.lasersonline.com, or the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's 
web site, www.11a. la. gov. 

Funding Policy 

Article X, Section 29(E)(2)(a) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 assigns the Legislature 
the authority to determine employee contributions. Employer contributions are actuarially 
determined using statutorily established methods on an annual basis and are constitutionally 
required to cover the employer's portion of the normal cost and provide for the amortization 
of the unfunded accrued liability. Employer contributions are adopted by the Legislature 
annually upon recommendation of the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee 
(PRSAC). 
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NOTE 9 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

Funding Policy (Continued) 

Employer contribution rate to the plan LASERS is established annually under La. R.S. 
11:101-11:104 by the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Comrnittee (PRSAC). The 
contribution rates in effect for the year ended June 30, 2024, for the Town and covered 
employees were as follows: 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System 

Contnbution Rates 

Town Employees 

  

Judges hired before 1/1/2011 45.80% 11.50% 

Judges hired on or after 1/1/2011 44.70% 13.00% 

Judges hired on or after 7/1/2015 44.70% 13.00% 

Contributions made to the plan for the past three fiscal years, were as follows: 

Plan 2024 2023 2022 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System $ 1,187 1,259 $ 1,262 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

The following schedule lists the Town's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability for 
the pension plan based on the measurernent dates. The Town uses this measurernent to 
record its net pension liability and associated arnounts as of June 30, 2024, in accordance 
with GASB Statement 68. The schedule also includes the proportionate share allocation rate 
used at the measurement date of the plan, alonv, with the change compared prior year rates. 
The Town's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the 
Agency's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected 
contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. 

Net Pension Current Previous 

Liability at June 30, Measurement Measurement Increase 

2023 Rate Rate (Decrease) 

LASERS 9,371 0.00014% 0.00015% -0.00001% 

(Continued) 
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NOTE 9 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 

At June 30, 2024, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience 203 $ 
Changes of assurnptions 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 

on pension plan investments 54 

Changes in proportion and differences between Employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 

Differences between allocated and actual contributions 
Employer contributions subsequent to the rneasurernent 

date 1,187 

1.444     

The Town reported a total of $1,187 as defetTed outflow of resources related to pension 
contributions made subsequent to the measurement period based on the measurement data, 
which will be recognized as a reduction in net pension liability of the Town in the year 
ended June 30, 2024. 

Other arnounts reported as defert-ed outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense (benefit) as follows: 

Year LASERS 

2024 75 

2025 (99) 

2026 136 

2027 (369) 

 

(257) 

(Continued) 
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NOTE 9 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

Actuarial Assumptions 

Demographic and salary assurnptions used in the valuation were adopted by the Board of 
Trustees following the rnost recent experience study. The Retirernent System is required to 
conduct an experience study every five years. An experience study was completed for the 
observation period of 2014-2018. The recommended assurnption changes based on this 
study were adopted by the Board, effective July 1, 2014. The experience study report, dated 
January 16, 2014, provides further information regarding the rationale for these 
assurnptions. 

A surnmary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension 
liability for the plan as of June 30, 2023: 

Measuren-ent/ Valuation Expected Remaining Investment Rate of 
Date Serivice Lives Return 

7.25%; net of investment 
LASERS June 30, 2023 2 years expense 

Mortality 

Non-disabled rnernbers — The RP-2014 Blue Collar (males/fernales) and White Collar 
(females) Healthy Annuitant Tables projected on a fully generational basis by Mortality 
Improvement Scale MP-2018. 

Disabled members — Mortality rates based on the RP-2000 Disabled Retiree Mortality 
Table, with no projection for mortality irnprovernent. 

Termination, Disability, and Retirement 

Terrnination, disability, and retirement assurnptions were projected based on a five-year 
(2014-2018) experience study of the System's mernbers. 

Saktry Increases 

Salaiy increases were projected based on a 2014-2018 experience study of the Systern's 
rnernbers. The salary increase range applicable to Judges has a lower range of 2.6% and 
upper range of 5.1%. 

Cost of Living Adjustments 

The present value of future retirernent benefits is based on benefits currently being paid by 
the Systern and includes previously granted cost of living increases. The projected benefit 
payments do not include provisions for potential future increases not yet authorized by the 
Board of Trustees as they were deemed not to be substantively automatic. 
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NOTE 9 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investrnents was deterrnined using a 
building-block method in which best-estirnates ranges of expected future real rates of 
return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are 
developed for each rnajor asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-terrn 
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target 
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation of 2.3% and an adjustrnent for 
the effect of rebalancing/diversification. The resulting expected long-terrn rate of return is 
8.19% for 2023. Best estimates of geornetric real rates of return for each major asset class 
included in the Systern's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2023, are summarized in the 
following table: 

Expected Long-Term Rates of Return 

Asset Class June 30, 2023 

Cash 0.80% 

Dornestic Equity 4.45% 

International Equity 5.44% 

Domestic Fixed Income 2.04% 

International Fixed Income 5.33% 

Alternative Investments 8.19% 

Total fund 5.75% 

Inflation 2.30% 

Total expected bng-terrn rate ofreturn 8.19% 

Discount Rate 

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan rnember 
contributions will be rnade at the current contribution rate and that sponsor contributions 
will be rnade at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution 
rates and the rnember rate. Based on those assumptions, each of the pension plan's 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit 
payrnents of current plan mernbers. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payrnents to 
determine the total pension liability. The discount rates used for the plan is displayed in the 
Sensitivity of the Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes 
in the Discount Rate table. 

(Continued) 
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Exhibit A-9 
(Continued) 

NOTE 9 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

The following table presents the Town's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability 
(NPL) using the discount rate of the Retirernent System as well as what the Town's 
proportionate share of the NPL would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 
one percentage-point lower or one percentage-point higher than the current rate used by the 
Retirement Systern: 

Current Discount 
1.0% Decrease Rate 1.0% Increase 

LASERS 

Discount Rates 6.25% 7.25% 8.25% 

Shares ofNet Pension Liability $ 12,270 $ 9,371 $ 6,914 

NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Intergovernmental Agreement 

The Town entered into an agreernent with Orange Grove Community Development District 
(the District) whereas the District and its developer, Renaissance Orange Grove, L.L.C. 
(Renaissance), plan to constnict a planned unit development (Orange Grove) within an 
annexed area of the Town. The Town and Renaissance have agreed that within 45 days of 
completed construction and approval of the final plat of the first filing of Orange Grove 
subdivision, the infrastnicture assets of Orange Grove, which consist of a sewer systern and 
related facilities, internal roadway systern and storrn water rnanagernent systern, shall be 
transferred by the District to the Town. Upon transfer of the systerns, the Town shall 
assurne full ownership and responsibility for operation and maintenance of the systerns and 
will be responsible for the expansion, cornpletion, operation and rnaintenance of the 
systerns for all residents of Orange Grove who rnay reside in subsequent filing plats of 
Orange Grove. Also, the Town shall have exclusive rights to all fees and revenues 
generated from the sewer system within Orange Grove. The term of this agreement is for 
60 years unless terrninated by both the Town and the District. 

As of June 30, 2024, the systerns had not been transferred to the Town frorn the District. 

Additionally, the District partially financed the construction of Orange Grove through the 
issuance of special assessment bonds. The Town has not incurred any debt, liabilities or 
other obligations as the bonds were issued by the District. 

Finally, the Town entered into a cooperative endeavor agreement with Renaissance. This 
agreernent provides that Renaissance shall pay the Town a surn of $150,000 within two 
years of the annexation ordinance (Ordinance #09-04, adopted May 19, 2009) and approval 
of Orange Grove by the Town as specified lots are sold within Orange Grove. When 
received, these funds are restricted for fire and safety construction. As of June 30, 2024, the 
Town has received $50,000 as part of this intergovernrnental agreernent; the rernaining 
$100,000 was the basis for a provision for uncollectible debt as disclosed in Note 4. 
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Exhibit A-9 
(Continued) 

NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 

Risk Management 

The Town rnay be exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, darnage to, 
and destniction of assets, errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural 
disasters for which the Town carries commercial insurance. There were no rnajor changes 
in insurance coverage from the prior year and settlements have not exceeded coverage in 
the current year or in the past three years. 

Suits and Claim 

Various suits and clairns arising in the ordinary course of operations rnay be pending 
against the Town. The majority of cases are either covered by insurance or other defenses; 
however, the ultirnate effect of such litigation cannot be ascertained at this tirne. 

NOTE 11 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 

The Town offers its employees a deferred cornpensation plan created in accordance with 
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The Plan is adrninistered by Nationwide Retirement 
Solutions, Inc. (Nationwide). The Plan, available to all Town employees, permits thern to 
defer a portion of their salaiy until future years. Participation in the Plan is optional. The 
defened cornpensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, 
or an unforeseeable emergency. In accordance with the arnended provisions of the Internal 
Revenue Code, all arnounts deferred under the Plan, including incorne attributable to those 
amounts, are solely the property and rights of the participants and their beneficiaries. As 
required, the Town established an agreernent with a third party adrninistrator who will 
hold the assets and income of the Plan. At June 30, 2024, there were no assets held by 
Nationwide on behalf of Town employees. 

The Town has irnplemented GASB Staternent No. 32, Accounling and Financial 
Reporling lbr Internal Revenue Code Seclion 457 Deferred Compensaiion Plans. Under 
this statement governments who have no responsibility for the plan and are not formally 
considered the Plan's trustee are not required to report the plan in its financial statements. 
Since the Town Plan is held in a custodial account with a third-party adrninistrator, the 
assets and liabilities are not presented in the Town's financial statements. 

(Continued) 
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(Continued) 

NOTE 12 - COMPENSATION OF GOVERNING BOARD 

During the year ended June 30, 2024, Council members received cornpensation, as 
follows: 

Narne 

 

Arnount 

Wanda Leblanc Bourgeois $ 3,300 

Randy J. Anny 

 

3,300 

Chad Domingue 

 

3,300 

Darnell Gilbert, Sr. 

 

3,300 

Duane Humphrey 

 

3,300 

Total 

 

16,500 

NOTE 13 - SUBSEQEUENT EVENT 

In October 2024, the Town entered into a grant agreement with the State of Louisiana's 
Departrnent of Culture, Recreation, and Tourisrn for purpose of engineering, design and 
constniction of a park and playground improvement project. The total project cost is 
estimated at $321,762. The Town will be responsible for payment of the matching funds 
required of $160,881 as well as the design costs of $7,553. 

49 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

50 



Exhibit B 

TOWN OF SORRENTO, LOUISIANA 
GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN 
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL 

For the year ended June 30, 2024 

 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actual 

Variance - 
favorable 

(unfavorable) 

REVENUES 
Taxes: 

    

Sales and use S 968M00 $ 885,000 869,164 $ (15,836) 
Franchise 105.000 110,000 112,380 2,380 
Ad valorem 82M00 84,000 90,086 6,086 
Other 3,000 3.000 2,059 (941) 

Charges for services: 

    

Licenses and pennits 101,300 108,700 117,075 8,375 
Rental and service fees 37.300 65,300 44,629 (20,671) 
Fines 2,500 1.250 1,019 (231) 

Grants arid contributions 645,000 144.500 299,196 154.696 
Invesunent income 10.000 40,300 54,218 13,918 
Miscellaneous 

 

500 7,917 7,417 

Total revenues 1,954,100 1,442,550 1,597,743 155,193 

EXPENDITURES 

    

Cunent function: 

    

General govenunent 318.000 330,000 328,722 1,278 
Public safety: 

    

Police 416,200 392,600 388,016 4,584 
Fire 46,000 43,000 36,882 6.118 

Highways and streets 425.900 445,900 328,035 117,865 
Culture and recreation 83.500 90,500 87,465 3,035 

Debt service 40,000 - - - 

Capital outlay 791,000 100,100 66,718 33,381 

Total expenditures 2,120.600 1,402,100 1,715,838 166,262 

Excess of revenues over expenditures (166.500) 40,450 361,905 321,455 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

    

Proceeds from right-of-use lease 200,000 - 

  

Transfer in 25.800 16,500 16,500 

 

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 

 

3,000 10,190 7,190 

Total other financing sources (uses) 225,800 19,500 26,690 7,190 

Net change in fund balance 59,300 59,950 388,595 328,645 

FUND BALANCE 

    

Beghming of year 906,034 1,413,573 1,413,577 

 

End of year S 965,334 $ 1,473,523 $ 1,802,172 

 

The notes to the required supplementary itiformation are an integral part of this schedule. 
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Exhibit B-1 

TOWN OF SORRENTO, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE 
OF NET PENSION LIABILITY 

For the year ended June 30, ", 024 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System (LASERS): 

    

As of the fiscal year ended (1): 2024 2023 2022 2021 

Employei s Proportion of the Net Penston Liability (Asset) 0.00014% 0.00015% 0.00015% 0.00015% 

Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) S 9,371 $ 11,264 S 8,311 S 12,571 
Employer's Covered-Employee Payroll 2,935 2,927 2,927 2.927 
Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) 

as a Percentage of its Covered-Employee Payroll 319.28% 384.83% 283.94% 429.48% 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liahility 68.40% 63.70% 72.80% 58.00% 

As of the fiscal year ended (1): 2020 2019 2018 2017 

Employer's Proportion of the Net Pens on L ability (Asset) 0.00015% 0.00016% 0.0001.7% 0.00017% 

Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) $ 11,012 S 10,912 $ 11,684 $ 12,957 
Ernployer's Covered-Employee Payroll 2,927 2,927 2,927 2,927 
Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) 

as a Percentage of its Covered-Emplffee Payroll 376.22% 372 80% 399.18% 442.67% 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 62.90% 64 30% 62.50% 57.70% 

As of the fiscal year ended (1): 2016 2015 

  

Employer's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) 0.00016% 0.00016% 

  

Entployer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) 10,746 S 10,192 

  

Employer's Covered-Employee Payroll 2,927 2,927 

  

Employer's Po-portionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) 
as a Percentage of its Covered-Employee Payroll 367.13% 348.21% 

  

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liahility 62.70% 65.00% 

  

(1 The amounts presented have a measurement date of LASERS's prior June 30th fiscal year end. 

The notes to the required supplernentary information are an integral part of this schedule. 
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Exhibit B-2 

TOWN OF SORRENTO, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (1) 

For the year ended June 30, 2024 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System (LASERS): 

As of the fiscal 

year ended 

Contractually 

Required 

Contribution 

Contributions in 

Relation to 

Contractuallv 

Required 

Contribution 

Contribution 

Excess 

(Deficiency) 

Employer's 

Covered 

Employee 

Payroll 

Contributions as 

a % of Covered 

Employee 

Payroll 

6/30/2024 1,187 1,187 

 

2,935 40.44% 
6/30/2023 1,259 1,259 

 

2,927 43.01% 
6/30/2022 1,259 1,262 3 2,927 43.12% 
6/30/2021 1,276 1,268 (8) 2,927 43.32% 
6/30/2020 1,215 1,21? 7 2,927 41.75% 
6/30/2019 1,215 1,158 (57) 2,927 39.56% 
6/30/2018 1,215 1,169 (46) 2,927 39.94% 
6/30/2017 1,215 1,020 (195) 2,927 34.85% 
6/30/2016 1,215 1,132 (83) 2,927 38.67% 
6/30/2015 1,215 1,189 (26) 2,927 40.6j% 

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule. 
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Exhibit B-3 

TOWN OF SORRENTO, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

For the year ended June 30, 2024 

NOTE 1 - BUDGETS 

Budget Policy and Budgetary Accounting 

A proposed budget is prepared and submitted by the Mayor to the Town Council prior to 
the beginning of each fiscal year. A budget sumrnaly and notice of a public hearing is 
published with the public hearing being conducted prior to the commencement of the 
budget year. 

The annual operating budget, prepared on the rnodified-accnial basis, covers the General 
Fund. At the end of the fiscal year, unexpended appropriations automatically lapse. Budget 
amendments are approved by the Town Council and are included in the financial 
statements. 

In connection with budget preparation, a portion of the unreserved fund balance of an 
individual fund may be designated for expenditures of the subsequent year. Such 
designation represents the extent to which the fund balance is used to balance the 
subsequent year's operating budget of that fund, as reflected in the legally adopted budget. 

Basis of Accounting 

The Town's General Fund budgets are prepared on the modified-accrual basis of 
accounting, which is described in Note 1 to the Town's financial statements for the year 
ended June 30, 2024. The Town's basis of budgetary accounting follows generally accepted 
accounting principles. 

NOTE 2 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 

Changes in Benefit Terms and Assumptions 

In 2019, members hired after June 30, 2015, rnay retire at age 62 upon completing five 
years of creditable service. 
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Exhibit B-3 
(Continued) 

NOTE 2 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

Changes in Benefit Terms and Assumptions (Continued) 

Measurement Date 

Investment Rate of Remm Inflation rates Changes of Benefit Terms 

Rate Change Rate Change Years Change 

June 30, 2023 7.25% 0.00% 2.30% 0.00% 1 

 

June 30, 2022 7.25% -0.15% 2.30% 0.00% 1 

 

June 30, 2021 7.40% -0.15% 2.30% 0.00% 1 

 

June 30, 2020 7.55% -0.05% 2.30% -0.20% 2 

 

June 30, 2019 7.60% -0.05% 2.50% -0.25% 2 (1) 
June 30, 2018 7.65% -0.05% 2.75% 0.00% 3 

 

June 30, 2017 7.70% -0.05% 2.75% -0.25% 3 

 

June 30, 2016 7.75% 0.00% 3.00% 0.00% 3 

 

June 30, 2015 7.75% 

 

3.00% 

 

3 
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Exhibit B-4 

TOWN OF SORRENTO, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS AND 
OTHER PAYMENTS TO AGENCY HEAD 

For the year ended June 30, 2024 

Agency Head: Christopher Guidry, Mayor 

Purpose Amount 

Salary $ 16,873 

Reimbursements - travel 248 

17,121 

See Independent Auditors' Report 
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Exhibit B-5 

TOWN OF SORRENTO, LOUISIANA 

ACT 87 JUSTICE SYSTEM FUNDING SCHEDULE 
RECEIVING ENTITY - CASH BASIS 

For the year ended June 31), 21)24 

 

First Six Month 
Period Ending, 

December 31, 2023 

Second Six Month 
Period Ending, 
June 30, 2024 

COLLECTIONS: 

   

Ascension Parish Sheriff, Criminal Court Costs/Fees 73 $ 192 

Ascension Parish Sheriff, Criminal Fines - Other 48 

 

706 

TOTAL COLLECTIONS: 121 

 

898 

TOTAL ENDING BALANCE OF AMOUNTS 

COLLECTED AND ASSESSED BUT NOT RECEIVED 

   

See Independent A iditors' Report 
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OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORTS 
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DD R DIEZ, DUPUY & RUIZ, LLC 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GO VERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
Members if the Town Council 
Town of Sorrento, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, and each major fund of the Town of Sorrento, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Sorrento, 
Louisiana's basic financial statements and have issued our report dated November 22, 2024. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Town of Sorrento, Louisiana's 
internal control over financial reporting (intemal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the fmancial statements, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Town of Sorrento, Louisiana's internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Town of Sorrento, Louisiana's internal 
control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the natrnal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, 
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
may exist that have not been identified. 
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Report on Cornpliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Sorrento, Louisiana's financial statements 
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect 
on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal control or 
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

Gonzales, Louisiana 
November 22, 2024 
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TOWN OF SORRENTO 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024  

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS 

1. The independent auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements 
of the Town of Sorrento were prepared in accordance with GAAP. 

No significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the financial statements are reported in the 
Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and 
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Govermnent 
Auditing Standards. No material weaknesses are reported. 

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Town of Sorrento, which would 
be required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, was disclosed during the 
audit. 

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 

None noted 

C. FINDINGS - COMPLIANCE WITH STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

None noted. 
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TOWN OF SORRENTO, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024  

A. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 

None noted. 

B. FINDINGS - COMPLIANCE WITH STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

None noted. 



TOWN OF SORRENTO, LOUISIANA  

STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES REPORT 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024  



DDR 
DIEZ, DUPUY & RUIZ, LLC 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the Town Council, and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor: 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the control and compliance (C/C) areas identified 
in the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's (LLA's) Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for the fiscal 
period July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024. The Town of Sorrento's management is responsible for those 
C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 

The Town of Sorrento has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate to 
meet the intended purpose of the engagement, which is to perform specified procedures on the C/C areas 
identified in LLA's SAUPs for the fiscal period July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024. Additionally, LLA 
has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate for its purposes. This report 
rnay not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures performed may not address all the items of 
interest to a user of this report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as such, users are 
responsible for determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

1) Written Policies and Procedures 

A. Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures and observe whether they address each 
of the following categories and subcategories if applicable to public funds and entity's operations: 

i Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the functions noted above. 

ii. Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the vendor 
list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase orders; (4) 
controls to ensure compliance with the Public Bid Law; and (5) documentation required to be 
maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the functions noted above. 

iii. Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the functions noted above. 
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iv. Receipts/Collections, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, policies and 
procedures should include management's actions to determine the completeness of all collections 
for each type of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g. periodic confirmation with outside parties, 
reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number 
sequences, agency fund forfeiture monies confirmation). 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the 'Unctions noted above. 

v. Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, and (2) reviewing and approving time and 
attendance records, including leave and overtime worked, and (3) approval process for employee(s) 
rate of pay or approval and maintenance of pay rate schedules. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the Anctions noted above. 

vi. Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms and 
conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the Anctions noted above. 

vii. Travel and expense reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar thresholds by 
categoly of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required approvers. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the Anctions noted above. 

viii. Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, P-Cards, if applicable), including (1) how cards are to 
be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, (4) required approvers 
of the statements, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g., determining the reasonableness of fuel card 
purchases). 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the jUnctions noted above. 

ix. Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute 42: Ill 1-1121, (2) 
actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor possible ethics violations, 
and (4) requirement that documentation is maintained to demonstrate that all employees and 
officials were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address thelimaions noted above. 

x. Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA reporting 
requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the 'Unctions noted above. 

xi. Infirmation Technology Disaster RecoverWBusiness Continuity, including (1) identification of 
critical data and frequency of data backups, (2) storage of backups in a separate physical location 
isolated from the network, (3) periodic testing/verification that backups can be restored, (4) use of 
antivirus software on all systems, (5) timely application of all available system and software 
patches/updates, and (6) identification of personnel, processes, and tools needed to recover 
operations after a critical event. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the 'Unctions noted above. 

xii. Prevention of Sexual Harassment, including R.S. 42:342-344 requirements for (1) agency 
responsibilities and prohibitions, (2) annual employee training, and (3) annual reporting. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the 'Unctions noted above. 



2) Board (or Finance Coininittee, if applicable) 

A. Obtain and inspect the board/finance cornrnittee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the board's 
enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the fiscal period, and: 

i. Observe that the board/finance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a frequency 
in accordance with the board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws or other equivalent document. 

No exceptions noted. 

ii. For those entities reporting on the uovernmental accounting model, observe that the minutes 
referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the general fund, quarterly 
budget-to-actual, at a minimuin, on proprietary funds, and semi-annual budget- to-actual, at a 
minimum, on all special revenue funds. 

No exceptions noted. 

iii. For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unassigned fund 
balance in the general fund. If the general fund had a negative ending unassigned fund balance in 
the prior year audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one rneeting during the fiscal period 
referenced or included a formal plan to eliminate the negative wiassigned fund balance in the 
ueneral fund. 

Not applicable, the Town did not have a negative unassigned litnd balance in the prior year. 

iv. Observe whether the board/finance committee received written updates of the progress of resolving 
audit finding(s), according to management's corrective action plan at each meeting until the 
findings are considered fully resolved. 

No exception noted. 

3) Bank Reconciliations 

A. Obtain a listing of entity bank accounts for the fiscal period frorn management and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Ask manauement to identify the entity's main operating 
account. Select the entity's main operating account and randomly select 4 additional accounts (or all 
accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month frorn the fiscal period, obtain and inspect the 
corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for each selected account, and observe that: 

Obtained listing of client bank accounts sfbr thc fiscal period from management and management's 
representation that listing is complete. 

Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the related 
statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); 

No exceptions noted. 

ii. Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member of management/board member who does not 
handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation e.g., initialed and 
dated, electronically logged); and 

No exceptions noted. 



iii. Management has documentation reflecting that it has researched reconciling items that have been 
outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if applicable. 

No exceptions noted. 

4) Collections (excluding electronic funds transfers) 

A. Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for cash/checks/money orders (cash) 
are prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 deposit 
sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5). 

Obtained a listing of deposit sites and management's representation that listing is complete. 

B. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations and management's representation 
that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each deposit site (i.e. 5 
collection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written policies and procedures relating to 
employee job duties (if no written policies or procedures, inquire of employees about their job duties) 
at each collection location, and observe that job duties are properly segregated at each collection 
location such that: 

Obtained a listing alcollection locations and management's representation that listing is complete. 

i. Employees responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers; 

Employees responsible for cash collections share cash drawers. 

Management's Response: The Town has made effivts to segregate duties to the extent possible with 
a limited amount qfPersonnel. The Town has determined the cost-benefit of adding additional staff 
to satisfy this segregation of duties matter is not economical. Additionallv. the Town monitors 
financial activity, to include review of.  budget to actual prafit and loss statements, on a monthly 
basis to identifj) any unexpected financial results. 

ii. Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for preparing/making bank 
deposits, unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling collection documentation 
(e.g. pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit; 

Employees revonsible fbr cash collections are responsible for preparing and making bank 
deposits. 

Management's Response: The Town has made effbrts to segregate duties to the extent possible with 
a limited amount af personnel. The Town has determined the cost-benefit of adding additional staff 
to satisti this segregation of duties matter is not economical. Additionally, the Town monitors 
financial activity, to include review of budget to actual prgfit and loss statements, on a monthly 
basis to identitif any unexpected financial results. 



iii. Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collection entries to 
the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee/official is responsible for 
reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit; and 

Employees responsible for collecting cash are responsihle for posting collection entries to the 

general ledger or subsidiaq legers without another employee/official responsible for reconciling 

ledger postings to each other and to the deposit. 

Management's Response: The Town has made efforts to segregate duties to the extent possible with 
a limited amount qfpersonnel. The Town has determined the cost-benefit of-adding additional ste 
to satisfY this segregation of duties matter is not economical. Additionally, the Town monitors 

.financial activity, to includc review of budget to actual profit and loss statements, Oil a monthly 
basis to iden4fY any unexpected financial results. 

iv. The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or subsidiary 
ledgers, by revenue source and/or agency fiind additions, is (are) not responsible for collecting cash, 
unless another employee verifies the reconciliation. 

No exception noted. 

C. Obtain from management a copy of the bond or insurance policy for theft covering all employees who 
have access to cash. Observe that the bond or insurance policy for theft was enforced during the fiscal 
period. 

No exceptions noted. 

D. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for Bank Reconciliations 
procedure #3A (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were made on the dates 
randomly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits are made on the same day). 
Alternately, the practitioner may use a source document other than bank statements when selecting ihe 
deposit dates ,fi-)r testing, such as a cash collection log, dailv revenue report, receipt book, etc. Obtain 
supporting documentation for each of the 10 deposits and: 

i. Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

No exceptions noted. 

ii. Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

No exceptions noted. 

iii. Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

No exceptions noted. 



iv. Observe that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection location 
(within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection location or the deposit 
is less than $10(1 and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe or drawer). 

Two of twelve receipts for len deposits selected did not document the receipt date payment received 
and we were unahle to determine lf the check was deposited timely. 

Management's Response: The Town will document receipt date for all sources received going 
forward. 

v. Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

No exceptions noted. 

5) Non-Payroll Disbursements (excluding card purchases, travel reimbursements, and petty cash 

purchases) 

A. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less than 5). 

Obtained listing of locations that process papnents and management's representation that listing is 
complete. 

B. For each location selected under procedure #5A above, obtain a listing of those employees involved 
with non-payroll purchasing and payrnent functions. Obtain written policies and procedures relating to 
employee job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures, inquire of ernployees about 
their job duties), and observe that job duties are properly segregated such that: 

i. At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, and 
placing an order/making the purchase; 

No exceptions noted. 

ii. At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors; 

No exceptions noted. 

iii. The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding/modifying vendor 
files, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to vendor files; 

No exceptions noted. 

iv. Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payrnent or gives the signed 
checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments; and 

No el-cep/ions noted. 



v. Only employees/officials authorized to sign checks approve the electronic disbursement (release) 
of funds, whether through automated clearinghouse (ACH), electronic funds transfer (EFT), wire 
transfer, or some other electronic means. 

No exceptions noted. 

C. For each location selected under procedure #5A above, obtain the entity's non-payroll disbursement 
transaction population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain management's 
representation that the population is complete. Randomly select 5 disbursements for each location, 
obtain supporting documentation for each transaction, and 

Observe whether the disbursernent, whether by paper or electronic means, matched the related 
original itemized invoice and supporting documentation indicates that deliverables included on the 
invoice were received by the entity, and 

No exception noted. 

ii. Observe that the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial/date, electronic 
logging) of segregation of duties tested under procedure #5B above, as applicable. 

No exception noted. 

D. Using the entity's main operating account and the month selected in Bank Reconciliations procedure 
#3A, randomly select 5 non-payroll-related electronic disbursements (or all electronic disbursements if 
less than 5) and observe that each electronic disbursement was (a) approved by only those persons 
authorized to disburse fiinds ( e.g., sign checks) per the entity's policy, and (b) approved by the required 
number of authorized signers per the entity's policy. Note: Hilo electronic payments were made from 
the main operating account during the month selected the practitioner should select an alternative month 
and/or account for testing that does include electronic disbursements. 

No exception noted. 

6) Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/Purchase Cards (Cards) 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and purchase 
cards (cards), for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of the persons who 
maintained possession of the cards. Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. 

Obtained listing qf the credit cards and management's representation that listing is complete. 

B. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all if less than 5) that were used 
during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or combined statement for each card 
(for a debit card, randomly select one monthly bank statement), obtain supporting documentation, and: 

i. Observe whether there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined staternent and 
supporting documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, exception reports 
for excessive fiiel card usage) were reviewed and approved, in writing (or electronically approved), 
by someone other than the authorized card holder (those instances requiring such approval that may 
constrain the legal authority of certain public officials, such as the mayor of a Lawrason Act 
municipality, should not be reported); and 

No exceptions notcd. 



ii. Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

No exceptions noted. 

C. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under procedure #7B above, excluding 
fuel cards, randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each statement, and 
obtain supporting documentation for the transactions (e.g., each card should have 10 transactions 
subject to inspection). For each transaction, observe that it is supported by (1) an original itemized 
receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) written documentation of the business/public 
purpose, and (3) documentation of the individuals participating in meals (for meal charges only). For 
missing receipts, the practitioner should describe the nature of the transaction and note whether 
management had a compensating control to address rnissing receipts, such as a "missing receipt 
statemenr that is subject to increased scrutiny. 

No exceptions noted. 

7) Travel and Travel -Related Expense Reimbursements (excluding card transactions) 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements during the 
fiscal period and management' s representation that the listing or general ledger is complete. Randomly 
select 5 reimbursements and obtain the related expense reimbursement forms/prepaid expense 
documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the supporting documentation. For each of 
the 5 reimbursements selected 

Obtained listing of travel and related expense reimbursements and management's representation that 
listing is complete. 

i. If reimbursed using a per diem, observe that the approved reimbursement rate is no more than those 
rates established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services Administration 
(www.gsa.gov); 

No exceptions noted. 

ii. If reimbursed using actual costs, observe that the reimbursement is supported by an original 
itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased; 

No exceptions noted. 

iii. Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public purpose 
(for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those individuals 
participating) and other documentation required by Written Policies and Procedures procedure 
#1A(vii); and 

No exceptions noted. 

iv. Observe that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than 
the person receiving reimbursement. 

No exceptions noted. 



8) Contracts 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services, materials and 
supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during the fiscal period. 
Alternately, the practitioner may use an equivalent selection source, such as an active vendor list. 
Obtain management's representation that the listing is cornplete. Randornly select 5 contracts (or all 
contracts if less than 5) frorn the listing, excluding the practitioner's contract, and 

Obtained listing of contracts initiated or renewed during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that listing is complete. 

i. Observe whether the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law (e.g., 
solicited quotes or bids, advertised), if required by law; 

No exceptions noted 

ii. Observe whether the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if required by policy or 
law (e.g. Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter); 

No exceptions noted. 

iii. If the contract was amended (e.g. change order), observe that the original contract terrns provided 
for such an amendrnent and that amendments were made in compliance with the contract terms 
(e.g., if approval is required for any ainendment, the documented approval); and 

No exceptions noted 

iv. Randomly select one payment frorn the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain the 
supporting invoice, agree the invoice to the contract tenns, and observe that the invoice and related 
payment agreed to the terms and conditions of the contract. 

No exceptions noted. 

9) Payroll and Personnel 

A. Obtain a listing of employees and officials employed during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees or officials, obtain related 
paid salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates in the 
personnel files. 

Obtained listing of employees ancl management's representation that listing was complete. Agreed 
paid salaries for four of live employees/officials selected to authorized salaries/pay rates in the 
personnel file without exception. The authorized payrate for one offive employees/officials selected 
was not documented in personnel file. See 9Biv below. 



B. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees or officials selected 
under procedure #9A above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay period, 
and 

i. Observe that all selected employees or officials documented their daily attendance and leave (e.g., 
vacation, sick, compensatory); 

No etceptions noted. 

ii. Observe whether supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees or 
officials: 

No exceptions noted. 

iii. Observe that any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the entity's cumulative 
leave records; and 

No exceptions noted. 

iv. Observe the rate paid to the employees or officials agree to the authorized salary/pay rate found 
within the personnel file. 

The authorized payrate for one of five employees/Officials selected was not documented in 

personnel file. 

Management's Response: The Town will review employee/official personnel files to ensure the 

current payfor employees/officials are properly authorized and documented in personnel file. 

C. Obtain a listing of those employees or officials that received termination payments during the fiscal 
period and management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two employees or 
officials, obtain related documentation of the hours and pay rates used in management's termination 
payrnent calculations and the entity's policy on tennination payments. Agree the hours to the 
employee's or official's cumulative leave records, agree the pay rates to the employee's or official's 
authorized pay rates in the employee's or official's personnel files, and agree the termination payment 
to entity policy. 

No exceptions noted. 

D. Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of third-party payroll 
related amounts (e.g., payroll taxes, retirement contributions, health insurance premiurns, 
garnishments, workers' compensation premiums, etc.) have been paid, and any associated forms have 
been filed, by required deadlines. 

No exceptions noted. 



10) Ethics 

A. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure #9A obtain 
ethics documentation from management, and 

i. Observe whether the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed one hour of 
ethics training during the calendar year as required by R.S. 42:1170; and 

No exceptions notcd. 

ii. Observe whether the entity maintains documentation which demonstrates each employee and 
official were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy during the fiscal period, as 
applicable. 

No exceptions noted. 

B. Inquire and/or observe whether the agency has appointed an ethics designee as required by R.S. 
42:1170. 

No exceptions noted. 

11) Debt Service 

A. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes and other debt instniments issued during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all debt instruments on the listing, 
obtain supporting documentation, and observe that State Bond Commission approval was obtained for 
each debt instrument issued as required by Article VII, Section 8 of the Louisiana Constitution. 

No debt issued during the fiscal period. 

B. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one bond/note, inspect debt covenants, 
obtain supporting documentation for the reserve balance and payments, and agree actual reserve 
balances and payments to those required by debt covenants (including contingency fiinds, short-lived 
asset funds, or other funds required by the debt covenants). 

Not applicable. 

12) Fraud Notice 

A. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the listing, 
obtain supporting documentation, and observe that the entity reported the misappropriation(s) to the 
legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which the entity is domiciled as required 
by R.S. 24:523. 

Management asserted that the entity did not have anv misappropriations of publiclimds or assets. 



B. Observe that the entity has posted on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 24:523.1 
concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds. 

No exceptions noted. 

13) Information Technology Disaster Recovety/Business Continuity 

A. Perform the following procedures, verbally discuss the results with management, and report "We 
performed the procedure and discussed the results with management." 

Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has backed up its critical data (if 
no written documentation, inquire of personnel responsible for backing up critical data) and 
observe that such backup (a) occun-ed within the past week, (b) was not stored on the govenunent's 
local server or network, and (c) was encrypted. 

We perfbrmed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

ii Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent docwnentation that it has tested/verified that its 
backups can be restored (if no written documentation, inquire of personnel responsible for 
testing/verifying backup restoration) and observe evidence that the test/verification was 
successfully performed within the past 3 months. 

We performed the procedure and discussed thc results with management. 

iii. Obtain a listing of the entity's computers currently in use, and their related locations, and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 computers and 
observe while management demonstrates that the selected computers have cun-ent and active 
antivirus software and that the operating system and accounting system software in use are 
currently supported by the vendor. 

We perfbrmed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

B. Randomly select 5 terminated employees (or all terrninated employees if less than 5) using the list of 
terminated employees obtained in procedure #9C. Observe evidence that the selected terminated 
employees have been removed or disabled from the network. 

No employees or officials terminated during the fiscal period. 

C. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure #9A, obtain 
cybersecurity training documentation fiom management, and observe that the docurnentation 
demonstrates that the following employees/officials with access to the agency's information 
technology assets have completed cybersecurity training as required by R.S. 42:1267. 

No exceptions noted. 



14) Sexual Harassment 

A. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure #9A above, 
obtain sexual harassment training documentation from management, and observe that the 
documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed at least one hour of sexual harassment 
training during the calendar year. 

No exceptions noted. 

B. Observe that the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on its website 
(or in a conspicuous location on the entity's premises if the entity does not have a website). 

No exceptions noted. 

C. Obtain the entity's annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, observe that the report 
was dated on or before February 1, and observe that the report includes the applicable requirements of 
R.S. 42:344: 

The Town did not prepare its annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period that it 
included the applicable requirements of R.S. 42:344. 

Management's Response: The Town intends to comply with annual sexual harassment reporting 
beginning with the current fiscal period. 

We were engaged by The Town of Sorrento to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and 
conducted our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute 
of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government Auditing Standards. We were not 
engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review engagement, the objective of which would be the 
expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C areas identified in the SATJPs. 
Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, 
other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of The Town of Sorrento and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, 
in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures engagement. 

This report is intended solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas identified in the 
SA UPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. Accordingly, 
this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is 
distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

ei e,” 
GonzaIes, Louisiana 
November 22, 2024 
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